THE RELEASE OF RFP NNG05-88738R HAS BEEN DELAYED.  AS SOON AS WE HAVE CONFIRMED DATE OF RELEASE WE WILL  NOTIFY ALL BIDDERS
ANSWERS TO BIDDERS QUESTIONS

The following is a list of questions of the Draft Request for Proposal (DRFP) NNG05-088738R Geostationary Lightning Mapper (GLM) and supporting documents that have been submitted by the various interested contractors.  NASA has provided responses to the questions and comments in red preceded by and R.
Would Goddard consider a cost type submittal for this RFP?  

R: No
Reference Draft Request for Proposal (DRFP) NNG05-088738R Released 15 December 2004

Section M, pg. 104, “Past performance will include the following specific areas established for this procurement in accordance with NFS 1815.305(a)(2)(B).  “

What or where are the “following specific areas”?
R:  Technical performance, schedule performance, cost performance and business relation. 
Cover page “Award Date” item 28. 

When will an “Award Date” be provided by the Government?
R: A firm award date will be provided after proposals evaluations are completed.  All we have now is a tentative award date for planning purposes.  That date is May 31, 2005.
Reference 417-R-GLMSOW-0059 Release 3 November 2004

3.8 Contractors Web Page

Will LiveLink be sufficient to fill this requirement?

R: Yes
4.1.2 Trade Studies

The Government reserves the right to add additional trades and analyses as formulation progresses.

Are these additional trades fee bearing?

R: No
4.3.1 Tool Development

It is the intention of the government to make these analytical tools, simulations and models deliverable items early in the implementation phase by the selected GLM Contractor, and to have these tools supported and updated by the GLM Contractor throughout the implementation phase.  

In the event that the Formulation phase contractor is not the selected Implementation Phase contractor, can certain data rights be granted to the former contractor to protect that Contractor’s proprietary interests?

R: Yes
Reference 417-R-GLMPORD-0057 Release 1 November 2004

3.2.3.2-4 The False Alarm Rate shall be less than 5%. 

This quantity is computed as the fraction of total lightning flashes detected by the GLM but not detected from the ground.  The time span for this computation is 24 hours. (TBR)

Can more detail on the calculation of False Alarm Rate be provided? 

R:  The quantity is the fraction of total event detection by the GLM that is not true lighting divided by the total amount of lighting flashes. 

Cover letter comments

Inconsistency between number of trade studies to be performed and the number listed in the SOW. Cover letter states that there are three while SOW lists six mandatory trades.

R:  Has been fixed in the SOW
PORD Comments 

Page 6: 

There is a line after the definition of full disk which says “Direct sun could … of the detector” This appears to be an orphan line. Where should it go?

R:  Has been fixed
Page 7:

Isn’t there a radiation report, 417-R-RPT-0027, for GOES-R. Should this be listed here and/or in the GIRD?

R:  Radiation report exist, however it will not be added.
3.1.1.1-3: 

conditions to enter Safe Mode: should be 'and' or 'or'? Sentence is somewhat ambiguous.

R:  Statement has been fixed.
3.2.3.1-2: 

Grammatical error - should be "The GLM system shall provide..."

R:  Statement has been fixed
.

3.2.3.2-2: 

The sensitivity requirements are given in micro Joules/meter-sr-micrometer instead of  micro Joules/ meter^2-sr-micrometer

R:  Units have been fixed
3.2.3.2-3: 

"...total lightning flashes that are also detected by the GLM." Don't they mean also detected by the ground? Sentence is somewhat ambiguous – Total lighting flashes

R:  Sentence has been clarified.
3.2.3.2-7 (Lightning) Continuing Current:

Comment:  Given the notes accompanying this requirement, it might be preferable to rephrase this requirement as “The GLM shall implement the capability to detect a lightning continuing current signature”.

R:  Agreed.
3.2.3.3-9: 

Does the detection threshold need to be adjustable within sub-arrays?  

R: Yes

3.2.3.4: 

Requiirements -> spelling error

R:  Has been corrected
3.2.3.5-1 One minute total data latency:

Comment:  Can we safely assume that the S/C portion of the total delay will not be substantial? 

R: Yes
3.3.1-3 Redundancy to eliminate all credible single-point failures:


Comment:  Can some latitude be allowed for less than total redundancy?  For example, if a focal plane array is a credible single-point failure, this requirement might force redundant FPAs, which would be difficult to implement without adding spare imagers.   

R:  Yes

3.3.4-1 MAT for the GLM:

Question:  What does it mean to have “at least” 5 K of uncertainty?

3.3.6-12  GLM event messages shall include all anomalous events, …

Comment:  There may be a conflict with requirements 3.3.6-16 and 3.3.6-17 which imply that some anomalous events will be discarded.

3.3.13: 

This is the only reference to an emulator. This isn’t in the SOW. Needs clarification

SOW Comments 

IMAR and MAR are used interchangeably through out

Page 3: 

4.2.3 minor typo S3 should be TS-3

R:  Typo has been corrected
Page 6:  3.1  Kick-Off and Requirements Review.

For all of the other instrument RFQ’s this meeting has not been a requirements review, especially to the level called out in this section. This is not enough time in a one day kickoff meeting to cover all requirements and other kick-off activities.

At best only a preliminary requirements review could be handled but it calls out that the contractor shall evaluate all GLM requirements. 

R:  The kick-off meeting requirements have been revised.
Page 7:  3.2 Progress Review

“The contractor shall present the results of the work since the MTR.”

According to schedules elsewhere in the SOW the only PR is at month 3 and the MTR is at month. Should this be just be 

“The contractor shall present the results of the work since the ACA

R:  Progress review requirements have been revised
Page 7: 

 “ The Contractor shall deliver the FINAL system …… and Technology readiness plans for formulation.” 

Does it make since to have the TRL plan prior to final requirements release which isn’t until MTR+1 month.

R.  Technology Readiness plan need date has been revised. 
Page 9: 3.7.1 

Final SEMP – Form

Final RM plan- Form 

TRL Plan - Form

Are listed as deliverable 1 month after KO but the text in section 3.3 states due at MTR.  Please clarify

R:  Overall CDRL has been revised
Page 9:  3.7.1

Draft Mid-term Report and Mid-Term report are not defined. Please clarify

R:  Overall CDRL has been revised and clarified.
Page 9: 

There are a great deal of plans required for such a short study. Several of the draft implementation documents should be deferred to the implantation phase.

R:  The government will consider reducing the number of CDRLs to a number commensurate with the dollars and formulation phase duration.
Page 10:

Shows Test Reports due at FPCCR. 

Please clarify what are test report.

R:  Requirement has been deleted
Page 13: 

4.2.5 typo TS4: Zones of reduced …  should be TS5…

4.2.6 typo TS5 Yaw …”   should be TS6 …

4.2.7 typo TS6 Additional trade studies …”  should be TS7 ….

R:  Corrections have been made
Page14: 

Simulation seems to complex for a 9 month study

R:  Requirement has been deleted
Page 15 (6):

Calibration (TBD)  Why is there a TBD in the title?

Page 15 (8):

“The Contractor shall define the .. LDA….”  Please clarify the level of definition needed. Again for the length of this study and cost there are large number of tasks and it will be challenging to complete. 

Page 16 (9): 

Software tasks called out are challenging for such a short study considering the scope of the other tasks. Consideration should be made to move some of these to Implementation.

R:  S/W requirements have been modified
Page 16  (12):

Is the prototype model the qual model? 

R:  Yes.  
Page 17:  4.4.1 


“The Contractor shall provide draft Implementation Phase schedule by at PR#1 …

Isn’t this too early in the study. Isn’t more appropriate at MTR?

R:  Requirement has been modified. 
UIID Comments

3.1.2  Telemetry Data Rate

Comment:  Limiting the average telemetry overhead to 1024 bits/sec may be too restrictive.  For example, this will limit the number of CCSDS packets with the maximum data zone size of 8192 octets that can be transmitted in one second to (1024 allowed bits per second / 156 packet overhead bits per packet) = 6.6 packets/sec.  This implies an allowable aggregate communication data rate of 6.6*(8192*8+156) bits/sec = 434Kbits/sec.  The GLM is allocated 400,000 bits/sec.  If it were necessary to send packets with smaller data zones, or some with housekeeping data, this telemetry limit would restrict the number of packets that could be sent per second, reducing the allowable GLM communication rate to below 400 Kbits/sec.  It may also place restrictions on how often housekeeping parameters are sampled, as well as preclude diagnostic modes that might require relatively high housekeeping sampling rates.

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.2 Power:

Comment:  The average, peak, and survival power limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration 

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.3 Mass:

Comment:  The mass limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.4 Volume:

Comment:  The volume limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration.  Also, in the “Instrument Module Envelopes Table” is the Auxiliary Electronics Unit the primary GLM Electronics Unit and not the auxiliary electronics unit for detector cooling mentioned in section 1 Scope?

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
Cover letter comments

Inconsistency between number of trade studies to be performed and the number listed in the SOW. Cover letter states that there are three while SOW lists six mandatory trades.

R:  Has been fixed in the SOW
PORD Comments 

Page 6: 

There is a line after the definition of full disk which says “Direct sun could … of the detector” This appears to be an orphan line. Where should it go?

R:  Has been fixed
Page 7:

Isn’t there a radiation report, 417-R-RPT-0027, for GOES-R. Should this be listed here and/or in the GIRD?

R:  Radiation report exist and it will be added to applicable documents
3.1.1.1-3: 

Conditions to enter Safe Mode: should be 'and' or 'or'? Sentence is somewhat ambiguous.

R:  Statement has been fixed.
3.2.3.1-2: 

Grammatical error - should be "The GLM system shall provide..."

R:  Statement has been fixed
.

3.2.3.2-2: 

The sensitivity requirements are given in micro Joules/meter-sr-micrometer instead of  micro Joules/ meter^2-sr-micrometer

R:  Units have been fixed

3.2.3.2-3: 

"...total lightning flashes that are also detected by the GLM." Don't they mean also detected by the ground? Sentence is somewhat ambiguous – Total lighting flashes

R:  Sentence has been clarified.
3.2.3.2-8 (Lightning) Continuing Current:

Comment:  Given the notes accompanying this requirement, it might be preferable to rephrase this requirement as “The GLM shall implement the capability to detect a lightning continuing current signature”.

R:  Agreed.
3.2.3.3-9: 

Does the detection threshold need to be adjustable within sub-arrays?  

R: Yes and it may have to be adjustable within detector elements.
3.2.3.4: 

Requiirements -> spelling error

R:  Has been corrected
3.2.3.5-2 One minute total data latency:

Comment:  Can we safely assume that the S/C portion of the total delay will not be substantial? 

R: Yes
3.3.1-4 Redundancy to eliminate all credible single-point failures:


Comment:  Can some latitude be allowed for less than total redundancy?  For example, if a focal plane array is a credible single-point failure, this requirement might force redundant FPAs, which would be difficult to implement without adding spare imagers.   

R:  Yes

3.3.4-2 MAT for the GLM:

Question:  What does it mean to have “at least” 5 K of uncertainty?

R:  Analytical uncertainties less than 5K would be unacceptable.  Since tests and subsequent correlations are imperfect, we require the “at least” 5K uncertainty to be carried after test up to launch.  This wording allows contractors to choose higher uncertainties where they feel it is appropriate.  
3.3.6-12  GLM event messages shall include all anomalous events, …

Comment:  There may be a conflict with requirements 3.3.6-16 and 3.3.6-17 which imply that some anomalous events will be discarded.

R:  We Agree 
3.3.13: 

This is the only reference to an emulator. This isn’t in the SOW. Needs clarification

R:  Emulator is not required for formulation phase
SOW Comments 

IMAR and MAR are used interchangeably through out

Page 3: 

4.2.3 minor typo S3 should be TS-3

R:  Typo has been corrected
Page 6:  3.1  Kick-Off and Requirements Review.

For all of the other instrument RFQ’s this meeting has not been a requirements review, especially to the level called out in this section. This is not enough time in a one day kickoff meeting to cover all requirements and other kick-off activities.

At best only a preliminary requirements review could be handled but it calls out that the contractor shall evaluate all GLM requirements. 

R:  The kick-off meeting requirements have been revised.
Page 7:  3.2 Progress Review

“The contractor shall present the results of the work since the MTR.”

According to schedules elsewhere in the SOW the only PR is at month 3 and the MTR is at month. Should this be just be 

“The contractor shall present the results of the work since the ACA

R:  Progress review requirements have been revised
Page 7: 

 “ The Contractor shall deliver the FINAL system …… and Technology readiness plans for formulation.” 

Does it make since to have the TRL plan prior to final requirements release which isn’t until MTR+1 month.

R.  Technology Readiness plan need date has been revised. 
Page 9: 3.7.1 

Final SEMP – Form

Final RM plan- Form 

TRL Plan - Form

Are listed as deliverable 1 month after KO but the text in section 3.3 states due at MTR.  Please clarify

R:  Overall CDRL has been revised
Page 9:  3.7.1

Draft Mid-term Report and Mid-Term report are not defined. Please clarify

R:  Overall CDRL has been revised and clarified.
Page 9: 

There are a great deal of plans required for such a short study. Several of the draft implementation documents should be deferred to the implantation phase. 

R:  The government will consider reducing the number of CDRLs to a number commensurate with the dollars and formulation phase duration.
Page 10:

Shows Test Reports due at FPCCR. 

Please clarify what are test report.

R:  Requirement has been modified
Page 13: 

4.2.5 typo TS4: Zones of reduced …  should be TS5…

4.2.6 typo TS5 Yaw …”   should be TS6 …

4.2.7 typo TS6 Additional trade studies …”  should be TS7 ….

R:  Corrections have been made
Page14: 

Simulation seems to complex for a 9 month study

R:  Requirement has been deleted
Page 15 (6):

Calibration (TBD)  Why is there a TBD in the title?

R:  It was a typo.
Page 15 (8):

“The Contractor shall define the .. LDA….”  Please clarify the level of definition needed. Again for the length of this study and cost there are large number of tasks and it will be challenging to complete. 

R: A concept design is required as part of this study.  A part of that presentation must include a discussion of the lightning detection algorithm approach, as well as a discussion of the ground processing algorithm needed to navigate and geo-locate the lightning events.  The contractor is not expected to complete the design during formulation.
Page 16 (9): 

Software tasks called out are challenging for such a short study considering the scope of the other tasks. Consideration should be made to move some of these to Implementation.

R:  S/W requirements have been modified
Page 16  (12):

Is the prototype model the qual model? 

R:  Yes.  This is applicable for implementation  phase
Page 17:  4.4.1 


“The Contractor shall provide draft Implementation Phase schedule by at PR#1 …

Isn’t this too early in the study. Isn’t more appropriate at MTR?

R:  Requirement has been modified. 
UIID Comments

3.4.2  Telemetry Data Rate

Comment:  Limiting the average telemetry overhead to 1024 bits/sec may be too restrictive.  For example, this will limit the number of CCSDS packets with the maximum data zone size of 8192 octets that can be transmitted in one second to (1024 allowed bits per second / 156 packet overhead bits per packet) = 6.6 packets/sec.  This implies an allowable aggregate communication data rate of 6.6*(8192*8+156) bits/sec = 434Kbits/sec.  The GLM is allocated 400,000 bits/sec.  If it were necessary to send packets with smaller data zones, or some with housekeeping data, this telemetry limit would restrict the number of packets that could be sent per second, reducing the allowable GLM communication rate to below 400 Kbits/sec.  It may also place restrictions on how often housekeeping parameters are sampled, as well as preclude diagnostic modes that might require relatively high housekeeping sampling rates.

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.5 Power:

Comment:  The average, peak, and survival power limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration 

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.6 Mass:

Comment:  The mass limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.
3.7 Volume:

Comment:  The volume limits may be too restrictive for a 4 telescope GLM configuration.  Also, in the “Instrument Module Envelopes Table” is the Auxiliary Electronics Unit the primary GLM Electronics Unit and not the auxiliary electronics unit for detector cooling mentioned in section 1 Scope?

R: The purpose of the Formulation phase is to address all requirement issues such the ones pointed out in the above paragraphs.  It is too premature to be relaxing requirements pre-solicitation for a Formulation phase.









